
0                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           
 
 
 
 
  00 

 
 

AGENDA-AMENDED 
 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 5, 2020 
 
 
ROLL CALL     7:00 P.M. 
 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
PRESENTATION 
 
MAYOR’S PRESENTATION OF CITY OF PERU GOOD NEIGHBOR RECOGNITION 
 
 
MINUTES 
 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES OF JANUARY 20, 2020 
 
 
FINANCIAL REPORTS 
 
SALES, HOME RULE, USE AND TELECOMMUNICATION TAX RECEIPTS FOR OCTOBER 2019 
 
 
ACTIVITY REPORTS 
 
POLICE DEPARTMENT MONTHLY REPORT FOR DECEMBER 2019 
 
PERU VOLUNTEER AMBULANCE SERVICE INC. ACTIVITY SUMMARY FOR DECEMBER 2019 
 
PERU VOLUNTEER AMBULANCE SERVICE INC. ACTIVITY SUMMARY FOR YEAR 2019 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



COMMITTEE REPORTS      ALDERMEN 
 
1. FINANCE AND SAFETY SERVICES   Chairman Radtke, Sapienza,  

       Payton, Buffo & Mayor Harl 
  
 DISBURSEMENTS for February 5, 2020 
 

Motion to reinvest Utility and General Funds: 
 
$150,000 at 1.90% in Wells Fargo Bank for 36 months 
$250,000 at 1.90% in Wells Fargo North America for 36 months 
$50,000 at 1.70% in BMW Bank of North America for 30 months 
$50,000 at 1.60% in Veritex Community Bank for 9 months 
$50,000 at 1.65% in Bank of Baroda for 12 months 
$50,000 at 1.60% in Haven Savings Bank for 7 months 
 
Approve $150 donation to the 2020 LaSalle Peru Founders Patrol Breakfast 
 
 

2. PUBLIC SERVICES     Chairman Waldorf, Ferrari,  
       Lukosus, Ballard & Mayor Harl 

 
Motion to approve an engineering service agreement with Chamlin & Associates for the design 
and inspection of the Area 5 Phase 1 IEPA mandated sewer separation project. 
 
Motion to seek bids for bucket truck for the Electric Department 
 

 
REPORT OF CITY ATTORNEY/ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS 
 
MINUTES OF PUBLIC HEARING ON PETITION OF MVAH  HOLDING LLC CONCERNING PROPERTY 
LOCATED EAST OF NORTH PEORIA STREET AND NORTH OF MIDTOWN ROAD, PERU, IL  
 
MINUTES OF PUBLIC HEARING ON PETITION OF ROBERT GRIVETTI CONCERNING PROPERTY 
LOCATED AT 2702 MAY ROAD, PERU, ILLINOIS 
 
AN ORDINANCE GRANTING SPECIAL USES AS SOUGHT BY THE PETITION OF ROBERT GRIVETTI FOR 
PROPERTY LOCATED AT 2702 MAY ROAD, PERU, IL 
 
RESOLUTION FOR MAINTENANCE OF STREETS AND HIGHWAYS BY MUNICIPALITY UNDER THE 
ILLINOIS HIGHWAY CODE (Supplemental Resolution – for expenditure of MFT funds for the N. Peoria Street 
roadway improvements) 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
NEW BUSINESS     
 
Motion to Approve an Engagement Letter with Klein, Thorpe and Jenkins, Ltd. For Special Counsel Legal 
Services Relating to FOIA Matters 
 
 
 
 



PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
 
ITEM NO 1.  Communication from Peru Veterans Memorial Group  
 
ITEM NO 2.  Communication from Terri Chamberlain requesting to use Baker Lake/shelter for small  
  wedding ceremony on Saturday, June 27th 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
CLOSED SESSION 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT   
 



CITY OF PERU REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING JANUARY 20, 2020 
   

 1 

A regular meeting of the Peru City Council was called to order by Mayor Scott J. Harl in the Peru City Council 
Chambers on Monday, January 20, 2020 at 7:00 p.m. 
 
City Clerk Dave Bartley called the roll with Aldermen Ferrari, Waldorf, Lukosus, Radtke, Sapienza, Payton, Ballard 
and Buffo present; Mayor Harl present. 
 
All joined in the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
PRESENTATION 
 
Mr. Bob Szczepaniak of the Peru BB Gun Club updated the council regarding the 2019-2020 BB gun season: 

• Thanked the City for continued support and donation 
• 40 participants 
• Shooting better than ever 
 

MINUTES 
 
Mayor Harl presented the minutes of the Regular Meeting of January 6, 2019. Alderman Waldorf made a motion 
that the minutes be received and placed on file. Alderman Ferrari seconded the motion; motion carried. 
 
FINANCIAL REPORTS 
 
Mayor Harl presented the Treasurer’s Report for December 2019 and City Clerk’s Report of Cash Received for 
December 2019. Alderman Radtke made a motion the reports be received and placed on file. Alderman Payton 
seconded the motion; motion carried. 
 
ACTIVITY REPORTS 
 
Mayor Harl presented the 4th Quarter Building Permit Report and Annual Building Permit Report for 2019 
Alderman Lukosus made a motion the report be received and placed on file. Alderman Waldorf seconded the 
motion; motion carried. 
 
FINANCE AND SAFETY COMMITTEE 
 
Alderman Buffo presented the following disbursements for payment on January 22, 2020: 
 

FUND NAME     TOTAL EXPENSES 
 
 General Fund $264,094.47 

 Insurance Fund 43,183.38 

 Garbage Fund 33,008.40 

 Utility Fund 1,613,710.80 

 Airport Fund 4,202.20 

 Total $1,958,199.25 

Alderman Buffo made a motion that the report be received, placed on file and the bills be paid in the usual manner.  
Alderman Radtke seconded the motion. City Clerk Dave Bartley called the roll with Aldermen Ferrari, Waldorf, 
Lukosus, Radtke, Sapienza, Payton, Ballard and Buffo voting aye; motion carried. 
 
Alderman Sapienza made a motion to approve $1,000 contribution to the Illinois Valley Rodders Car Club. 
Alderman Payton seconded the motion. City Clerk Dave Bartley called the roll with Aldermen Ferrari, Waldorf, 
Lukosus, Radtke, Sapienza, Payton, Ballard and Buffo voting aye; motion carried. 
 



CITY OF PERU REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING JANUARY 20, 2020 
   

 2 

Alderman Payton made a motion to approve $2,500 contribution to Central Region Senior Baseball Tournament 
(Central States Tournament July 24th 29th). Alderman Sapienza seconded the motion. City Clerk Dave Bartley called 
the roll with Aldermen Ferrari, Waldorf, Lukosus, Radtke, Sapienza, Payton, Ballard and Buffo voting aye; motion 
carried. 
 
Alderman Radtke made a motion to approve a $150.00 donation to LP Challenge Day event. Alderman Sapienza 
seconded the motion. City Clerk Dave Bartley called the roll with Aldermen Ferrari, Waldorf, Lukosus, Radtke, 
Sapienza, Payton, Ballard and Buffo voting aye; motion carried. 
 
PSM/Fire Chief Jeff King provided the following safety update for 2019: 

• 8 incidents 
• 0 compensable cases 
• Under $5,000 in claims 
• Congratulated all departments and employees 

 
PUBLIC SERVICES COMMITTEE 
 
Alderman Waldorf made a motion to approve installation of windows and air conditioning at the Washington Park 
Concession Stand; funded through Peru Little League. Alderman Ballard seconded the motion. City Clerk Dave 
Bartley called the roll with Aldermen Ferrari, Waldorf, Lukosus, Radtke, Sapienza, Payton, Ballard and Buffo 
voting aye; motion carried. 
 
Alderman Waldorf made a motion to authorize a purchase of a 2020 Chevrolet Equinox for use by the Director of 
Parks, Recreation and Special Events based on quote from JP Chevrolet of Peru in the approximate amount of 
$24,619.60. Mayor Harl stated the vehicle will be available for use by other officers of the city such as meetings in 
Springfield, IMIC meetings, Conferences and to the Parks Director. Alderman Payton seconded the motion. City 
Clerk Dave Bartley called the roll with Aldermen Ferrari, Waldorf, Lukosus, Radtke, Sapienza, Payton, Ballard and 
Buffo voting aye; motion carried. 
 
Alderman Waldorf made a motion to approve purchase of 2019 Ford F550 with snowplow package Kune’s Country 
Ford for a total of $90,191.70. Alderman Lukosus seconded the motion. City Clerk Dave Bartley called the roll with 
Aldermen Ferrari, Waldorf, Lukosus, Radtke, Sapienza, Payton, Ballard and Buffo voting aye; motion carried. 
 
Alderman Lukosus made a motion to approve low bid from Graybar for 18,240 ft of conduit for $24,908.54. 
Alderman Ferrari seconded the motion. City Clerk Dave Bartley called the roll with Aldermen Ferrari, Waldorf, 
Lukosus, Radtke, Sapienza, Payton, Ballard and Buffo voting aye; motion carried. 
  
REPORT OF CITY ATTORNEY/ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS 
 
Corporate Counsel Scott Schweickert presented a proposed ordinance entitled: 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 6453 
 
AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING AN OFFICIAL PURCHASING POLICY FOR THE CITY OF PERU, 
ILLINOIS 
 
Alderman Radtke made a motion the ordinance be adopted as written and read. Alderman Waldorf seconded the 
motion. Finance Officer Justin Miller stated the ordinance combines all separate policies (credit card policy, travel 
expenses, bidding policy and general purchases). City Clerk Dave Bartley called the roll with Aldermen Ferrari, 
Waldorf, Lukosus, Radtke, Sapienza, Payton, Ballard and Buffo voting aye; motion carried. 
 
PROCLAMATIONS 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 



CITY OF PERU REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING JANUARY 20, 2020 
   

 3 

Alderman Ballard made a motion to authorize the execution of Intergovernmental Agreement with La Salle Peru 
Township High School regarding the $250,000 commitment to the Field of Dreams project. Alderman Sapienza 
seconded the motion. Alderman Radtke said he believes the project is a win-win for both parties. City Clerk Dave 
Bartley called the roll with Aldermen Ferrari, Waldorf, Lukosus, Radtke, Sapienza, Payton, Ballard and Buffo 
voting aye; motion carried. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Mayor Harl read the following statement regarding newly hired Parks, Recreation and Special Events Director 
Adam Thorson: “We are excited to announce that Adam Thorson has joined our team as the new Director of Parks, 
Recreation, and Special Events.  Adam has a degree from ISU in Parks & Recreation Administration.  Additionally, 
Adam has worked as the Assistant Director of Golf from Senica’s Oakridge, as well as, serving as the head Boys 
Freshman Basketball Coach for Streator High School.  Adam has grown up in Streator, IL and is passionate about 
the field of parks and recreation” Mayor Harl noted there were over 30 applications, 6-8 first interviews and 3 
second interviews. 
 
PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
 
Clerk Bartley presented a petition from Joe Witczak seeking variances and waivers for property located at 4015 
Progress Blvd. Alderman Radtke made a motion the petition be received, placed on file and referred to the 
Planning/Zoning Board for review and recommendation. Alderman Ballard seconded the motion; motion carried. 
 
Clerk Bartley presented a petition from GC Housing Development LLC and Crane Construction Company LLC 
requesting variances for properties located at 1810 4th Street and 710 Peoria Street. Alderman Sapienza made a 
motion the petition be received, placed on file and referred to the Planning/Zoning Board for review and 
recommendation. Alderman Waldorf seconded the motion; motion carried. 
 
Clerk Bartley presented a communication from the Illinois Valley Symphony Orchestra requesting permission to 
place a temporary vinyl sign over the “Welcome To Peru” billboard on Rt 6. Alderman Payton made a motion the 
communication be received, placed on file and permission granted. Alderman Lukosus seconded the motion; motion 
carried.  
 
Clerk Bartley presented a communication from the High Speed Rail Alliance requesting a donation to be a 
municipal member for $250.00. Alderman Radtke made a motion the communication be received, placed on file and 
referred to the Finance and Safety Services Committee for review and recommendation. Alderman Buffo seconded 
the motion; motion carried. 
   
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
CLOSED SESSION 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Alderman Ferrari made a motion that the meeting be adjourned. Alderman Waldorf seconded the motion and motion 
carried. Meeting adjourned 7:27 p.m.  
 
 



CITY OF PERU SALES, HOME RULE, USE AND TELECOMMUNICATION TAX RECEIPTS            2018-2019

2018-HRT 1.0% YTD Total Incr (Decr) 2019-HRT 1.0% YTD Total Incr (Decr)

Jan-Use tax 19,610.25      21,582.52         
Jan-Telecom tax 18,195.20      16,592.24         
Jan-Sales 459,099.57    420,893.97       
Jan-Home Rule 286,890.64    264,705.97       
Jan-Total 783,795.66    783,795.66      66,171.45      723,774.70       723,774.70      (60,020.96)          

Feb-Use tax 20,166.98      24,863.37         
Feb-Telecom tax 16,933.20      15,688.82         
Feb-Sales 420,325.46    437,638.05       
Feb-Home Rule 266,308.39    269,504.18       
Feb-Total 723,734.03    1,507,529.69   1,953.24        747,694.42       1,471,469.12   23,960.39           

Mar-Use tax 24,354.70      28,265.28         
Mar-Telecom tax 18,575.54      15,965.06         
Mar-Sales 536,003.87    526,712.53       
Mar-Home Rule 344,016.34    331,598.41       
Mar-Total 922,950.45    2,430,480.14   50,970.80      902,541.28       2,374,010.40   (20,409.17)          

Apr-Use tax 21,256.01      26,753.50         
Apr-Telecom tax 17,521.42      15,222.40         
Apr-Sales 524,444.23    532,825.45       
Apr-Home Rule 356,452.37    340,164.21       
Apr-Total 919,674.03    3,350,154.17   33,230.61      914,965.56       3,288,975.96   (4,708.47)            

May-Use tax 23,178.12      26,869.09         
May-Telecom tax 17,934.63      15,333.16         
May-Sales 542,902.81    549,364.75       
May-Home Rule 374,614.22    357,681.81       
May-Total 958,629.78    4,308,783.95   79,338.89      949,248.81       4,238,224.77   (9,380.97)            

Jun-Use tax 24,822.75      27,315.17         
Jun-Telecom tax 17,528.54      14,796.42         
Jun-Sales 585,593.34    532,566.53       
Jun-Home Rule 395,550.54    347,510.49       
Jun-Total 1,023,495.17 5,332,279.12   109,035.59    922,188.61       5,160,413.38   (101,306.56)        

Jul-Use tax 24,079.96      28,081.36         
Jul-Telecom tax 17,190.57      14,603.38         
Jul-Sales 533,775.68    569,297.97       
Jul-Home Rule 351,625.52    364,610.84       
Jul-Total 926,671.73    6,258,950.85   89,958.59      976,593.55       6,137,006.93   49,921.82           

Aug-Use tax 22,900.92      26,903.49         
Aug-Telecom tax 17,424.65      14,249.96         
Aug-Sales 506,165.40    543,289.39       
Aug-Home Rule 335,543.84    342,666.94       
Aug-Total 882,034.81    7,140,985.66   47,089.30      927,109.78       7,064,116.71   45,074.97           

Sep-Use tax 26,270.79      30,131.62         
Sep-Telecom tax 16,894.30      13,785.76         
Sep-Sales 478,205.32    520,730.13       
Sep-Home Rule 313,113.61    332,274.55       
Sep-Total 834,484.02    7,975,469.68   (13,768.97)     896,922.06       7,961,038.77   62,438.04           

1



CITY OF PERU SALES, HOME RULE, USE AND TELECOMMUNICATION TAX RECEIPTS            2018-2019

2018-HRT 1.0% YTD Total Incr (Decr) 2019-HRT 1.0% YTD Total Incr (Decr)

Oct-Use tax 27,806.99      33,083.01         
Oct-Telecom tax 17,292.86      14,577.93         
Oct-Sales 510,369.77    546,893.59       
Oct-Home Rule 327,113.50    353,122.13       
Oct-Total 882,583.12    8,858,052.80   27,792.33      947,676.66       8,908,715.43   65,093.54           

Nov-Use tax 30,767.58      -                    
Nov-Telecom tax 17,539.72      -                    
Nov-Sales 516,701.74    -                    
Nov-Home Rule 351,900.38    -                    
Nov-Total 916,909.42    9,774,962.22   2,856.03        -                    8,908,715.43   

Dec-Use tax 37,205.54      -                    
Dec-Telecom tax 17,372.67      -                    
Dec-Sales 585,452.34    -                    
Dec-Home Rule 394,793.89    -                    
Dec-Total 1,034,824.44 10,809,786.66    (28,532.87)     -                    8,908,715.43      -                      

TOTAL 10,809,786.66    466,094.99    8,908,715.43      50,662.63           

BREAKDOWN

2018 Incr over prev yr 2019 Incr over prev yr

Use Tax 302,420.59    20.9% 273,848.41       

Telecom tax 210,403.30    -10.5% 150,815.13       

Sales Tax 6,199,039.53 4.4% 5,180,212.36    

HRT-Parkside 2,048,961.62 4.5% 1,651,919.77    
HRT-Infrastucture 2,048,961.62 4.5% 1,651,919.77    

* 55,667.90      * 50,953.94         

*Loss due to State Adm fees

2





































































































1 
 

ORDINANCE NO_______________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING SPECIAL USES AS 
SOUGHT BY THE PETITION OF ROBERT GRIVETTI 
FOR PROPERTY LOCATED AT 2702 MAY ROAD, 
PERU, IL 

 
 

WHEREAS, after legal ad notice duly published in the News Tribune on January 4, 2020, 

in the manner provided by law, the Planning/Zoning Commission of the City of Peru conducted a 

public hearing on January 29, 2020, to consider the Petition of Robert Grivetti praying for a special 

use under Section 11.01(c) of the City of Peru Zoning Ordinance to allow for the outside sales and display 

of construction equipment and attachments, and a special use under Section 11.05(d)(14) of the Zoning 

Ordinance to allow for the construction of a fence in the front yard as it pertains to property located at 

2702 May Road in the City of Peru; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning/Zoning Commission has made its report of the hearing and has 

unanimously recommended that the requested special uses be approved. 

     NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF PERU, LASALLE COUNTY, ILLINOIS, A HOME RULE MUNICIPALITY, AS 

FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1:  Petitioner is hereby granted a special use under Section 11.01(c) and 

Section 11.05(d)(14) of the Zoning Ordinance of the City of Peru to allow for the outside sales and 

display of construction equipment and attachments and to allow for the construction of a fence in the front 

yard on the property located at 2702 May Road, Peru, IL, legally described as follows: 

That part of the East 25 acres of the North 50 acres of the West One-Half of the 
Northwest Quarter of Section 5, Township 33 North, Range 1 East of the Third 
Principal Meridian, lying and being North of the North Boundary Line of 
Interstate Route 80, being more particularly described as follows: Commencing 
at the Northwest corner of the said Northwest Quarter of Section 5, thence North 
89 degrees 52 minutes 16 seconds East, along the North line of said Northwest 
Quarter of Section 5, for a distance of 974.96 feet to the point of beginning; 
thence continuing North 89 degrees 52 minutes 16 seconds East, along said North 
line, 192.07 feet, thence South 00 degrees 19 minutes 14 seconds West 363.00 



2 
 

feet; thence North 89 degrees 52 minutes 16 seconds East 154.49 feet to a point 
on the East line of the West One-Half of the Northwest Quarter of said Section 
5; thence South 00 degrees 32 minutes 47 seconds West, along said East line, 
329.00 feet to a point on the North Right-of-Way line of Interstate 80; thence 
South 89 degrees 40 minutes 22 seconds West, along said North Right-of-Way 
line, 342.67 feet; thence North 00 degrees 06 minutes 19 seconds East 693.16 
feet to the Point of Beginning, said tract containing 4.197 acres, more or less, 
except coal and minerals and the right to mine and remove the same as heretofore 
severed from the fee thereof, all situated in the County of LaSalle and State of 
Illinois.   
  

  These special uses are granted on the condition that the fence will not encroach upon any 

existing easements and the outside sales and display of construction equipment and attachments conform 

with the standards set forth in Section 11.01(c)(2) of the Zoning Ordinance.  

Nothing in this Ordinance shall be construed to preempt any private covenants and restrictions 

that may be applicable to the Property. 

SECTION 2:  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effective immediately from and after 

its passage and approval.   

PRESENTED, PASSED, AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the 

City of Peru, Illinois, by an aye and nay roll call vote, with _____ voting aye, ______ voting nay, _______ 

absent, and Mayor Harl___ voting, which meeting was held on the 5th day of February, 2020.   

APPROVED: February 5, 2020 

_________________________________ 
        Scott J. Harl, Mayor 

(CORPORATE SEAL) 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
David R. Bartley, City Clerk 
 
Aldermen       Aye             Nay Absent 
Ferrari 
Waldorf 
Lukosus 
Radtke 
Sapienza 
Payton  
Ballard 
Buffo      










	Agenda 020520-Amended
	WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 5, 2020
	MINUTES
	COMMITTEE REPORTS      ALDERMEN
	UNFINISHED BUSINESS
	PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS
	PUBLIC COMMENT
	ADJOURNMENT


	Regular Meeting Minutes 012020
	All joined in the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America.
	UPUBLIC COMMENT
	UPRESENTATION
	Mr. Bob Szczepaniak of the Peru BB Gun Club updated the council regarding the 2019-2020 BB gun season:
	 Thanked the City for continued support and donation
	 40 participants
	 Shooting better than ever
	UREPORT OF CITY ATTORNEY/ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS
	Corporate Counsel Scott Schweickert presented a proposed ordinance entitled:
	ORDINANCE NO. 6453
	AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING AN OFFICIAL PURCHASING POLICY FOR THE CITY OF PERU, ILLINOIS
	Alderman Radtke made a motion the ordinance be adopted as written and read. Alderman Waldorf seconded the motion. Finance Officer Justin Miller stated the ordinance combines all separate policies (credit card policy, travel expenses, bidding policy an...
	UPROCLAMATIONS
	UUNFINISHED BUSINESS
	Alderman Ballard made a motion to authorize the execution of Intergovernmental Agreement with La Salle Peru Township High School regarding the $250,000 commitment to the Field of Dreams project. Alderman Sapienza seconded the motion. Alderman Radtke s...
	UNEW BUSINESS

	Sales Tax Report-Oct 2019
	Police Dept Dec 2019
	PVAS Dec 2019
	PVAS 2019 Annual Report
	Disbursements 020520
	Minutes.MVAH Holding LLC
	Minutes.Grivetti
	Ordinacne .Grivetti
	0201_001
	Peru Veterans Memorial Group

